

1620 DATA PROCESSING SYSTEM BULLETIN

1620 SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING SYSTEM: PRELIMINARY SPECIFICATIONS

This bulletin is a minor revision of, and does not supersede the preceding edition, form J28-4201. All information contained in the bulletin "Additional Macro-Instructions for the IBM 1620 Symbolic Programming System," form J28-4202, has been incorporated into this revision.

In order to perform a given task, the IBM 1620 Data Processing System must be presented with a detailed set of instructions in its own intricate language. This language, which consists of numerical codes, is called the "machine language." A logical sequence of instructions (or steps) in this language is called the machine language program. Specifying the steps in the solution of a problem using machine language can at times be a difficult and time-consuming job. The intricacy of the machine language and the complexity of a program may frequently cause clerical and logical errors. Also, a hand coded machine language program is not relocatable; that is, it cannot be executed from a different section of the processing unit without being manually changed.

In order to simplify the preparation of a program for the IBM 1620, the 1620 Symbolic Programming System has been developed. This bulletin is devoted to a description of the preliminary specifications of the system. It also contains, as introductory material, a section discussing the basic principles and concepts of symbolic programming. A knowledge of programming in 1620 machine language is presupposed.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Basic Principles and Concepts of Symbolic Programming	3
General Description of the IBM 1620 Symbolic Programming System	5
1620 Symbolic Programming System Coding Sheet	5
Organization of the Processor	11
Programming the IBM 1620 using the Symbolic Programming System	13
Area Definitions	13
1620 Symbolic Programming Instructions	18
Processor Control Operations	26
Sample Program	28
Functional List of 1620 Symbolic Programming Mnemonic Operation Codes	37
Unique Mnemonics to Replace Mnemonics Requiring Modifiers	38

BASIC PRINCIPLES AND CONCEPTS OF SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING

In the early stages of data processing system development, programs were almost always written directly in the numerical and alphabetic notation (machine language) used by the system. As data processing systems developed, larger and more sophisticated machines were designed. Concurrently, programs for these machines became greater in length and complexity. As a result, programming efforts were greatly increased. Not only did it become difficult to memorize the many numerical and alphabetic codes required to write a program, but the length and complexity of the programs were conducive to increased numbers of clerical and logical errors. In addition, the problem of correcting errors in a program was intensified by the difficulty in tracing a machine language program through its many steps and finding a convenient way of including corrections.

In order to relieve the programmer of writing programs in machine language, symbolic programming systems were developed. Symbolic programming may be defined as a method wherein names, characteristics of instructions, or closely related symbols are used in writing a program. Data to be processed is referred to by name or other meaningful designation. Operation codes are written in an easily remembered mnemonic form rather than in the numerical language of the machine. Such systems permit the programmer to use a simpler, more familiar language in writing programs and often require a less detailed knowledge of the machine. Associated with each symbolic programming system is a machine language program called a "processor". The function of the processor is to translate the symbolic language of the programming system into the language of the data processing system. Generally, this translation is a "one-for-one" translation. That is, for each instruction written in symbolic form, one machine language instruction is produced.

The specific benefits derived from using easily recognizable symbols consisting of letters, numbers and special characters to represent corresponding elements of machine language, will depend to a large extent on the characteristics of the machine for which the system is designed. Generally, however, this feature makes it easier for persons unfamiliar with a program to follow the program's logic. It frequently eliminates the necessity of detailed flow charts and coding comments by providing, in the body of the instruction itself, the information usually found in these items. Also, coding is simplified, thereby decreasing the time required for coding and increasing coding accuracy.

Another advantageous feature of symbolic programming is the relative relationship between symbolic entries. Coding is facilitated by this feature as it permits instructions and data to be referred to before they are assigned actual machine addresses and without regard to their machine addresses. The feature permits sections of other programs or subroutines (short programs or routines common to a number of programs) to be easily incorporated in a program. It also permits each routine in a program to be written independently of the others with little or no loss of efficiency in the final program. Since instructions are not assigned storage locations by the programmer, the addition, deletion, modification or correction of instructions entails no reassignment of addresses. Finally, the feature makes programs and subroutines readily relocatable — i.e., they can be placed in varying machine locations as desired.

Paralleling the development of symbolic coding was the development of the macro-instruction concept. A macro-instruction is a synthetic instruction which, during the translation to machine language, refers the processor to a "library" from which a sequence of machine language instructions is extracted and placed in the machine language program. These instructions have been previously written, tested and stored in the library. Macro-instructions are used to save the programmer from coding certain repetitious sequences of instructions, such as arithmetic functions.

After a symbolic program, which may consist of a combination of the "one-for-one" symbolic instructions and the "many-for-one" macros, is completed, it must be converted into the format required by the machine on which it will be used. As was mentioned earlier, this is the function of the processor. Processors (sometimes called assembly programs) are designed to accomplish this conversion quickly, accurately, and as automatically as possible. Usually, an assembly program utilizes the machine for which the symbolic program is written. The typical assembly program analyzes all symbolic entries and macro-instructions and converts them to actual machine operating instructions and data, and establishes the specified relationships between them. As an additional feature, assembly programs also indicate various types of coding errors.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE IBM 1620 SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING SYSTEM

The 1620 Symbolic Programming System consists of two distinct areas of discussion: the symbolic language and the processor.

The symbolic language is the notation in which a programmer codes the program. This language is in the form of mnemonic operation codes provided within the framework of the system, and also includes definitions of work areas, record areas and other data supplied by the programmer. Each separate item of information is written on a coding sheet with one statement per line. Statements are normally written in the order in which they are to be executed unless some other sequence is specifically indicated by the programmer. A program written in this manner intended for translation into machine language is called a "source" program.

After the program has been written in the symbolic language it is punched into the input tape. Each statement (one line of the coding sheet) when punched on paper tape must be terminated by an end-of-line character. Blanks need not separate one statement from another on the input tape. That is, the next statement may be punched immediately following the end-of-line character of the previous statement.

The processor is the 1620 machine language program which performs the actual functions of translation and assembly. The processor takes the source program in symbolic language, translates the mnemonic codes into machine language codes, assigns core storage addresses to instructions and symbolic data references, and assembles a finished machine language program known as the "object" program.

The following pages are devoted to a detailed description of the 1620 symbolic programming language, and a brief outline of the processor. The description proceeds as follows:

- The first of the two sections which immediately follow is concerned with a description
 of the coding sheet on which the source program will be written. The second section
 covers the organization of the processor. The listing and operating instructions for
 the processor are not included in this bulletin. These will be made available in a
 subsequent publication.
- 2. A section called "Programming the 1620 using the Symbolic Programming System" describes in detail the various steps to be followed in coding a source program. This section covers the rules and conventions required for using the symbolic language. It describes the manner in which input/output areas, storage areas and constants are defined. Examples of all pertinent information are provided.

1620 SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING SYSTEM CODING SHEET

All information relevant to the coding and subsequent assembly of the object program is entered on the 1620 Symbolic Programming System Coding Sheet. This form is illustrated in Figure 1. The information required to produce an object program falls into three categories as follows:

10.00

Locu Symbolic Programming System	Coding Sheet	

Program											Page	Page No. L.	of	1
Programmed by	med by -					Date								
LINE	LABEL	0PERATION	OPERANDS & REMARKS		30	50	0	89	09	so so	09	82	70	75
0,1,0	11111			111111	1111	1111	1	11111	11111	11111	11111		11111	-
01210				11111	1111	11111	1111	1111		1111				-
01310	1111			111111	1111	1111	1					-		- :
01410	1111		1111111	111111	1111		1111						-	
01810	1111	1 1 1 1	1111111	111111	1 1 1 1 1	11111	1111							-
01910	1111			111111			- 1			-				-
01710	1111	1 1 1	111111	111111	1111	1 1 1 1								
01810	1 1 1 1	1 1 1		111111	1111	1111	1111	1111	11111					-
01810	1 1 1 1	1111	111111	11111	1111	1111	1111				1111			-
0'0'1	1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1		111111	1111			1111	11111	11111	1 1 1 1	11111		-
0 1 1 1	1111	1 1 1			1111	1111			11111		1111	1111		-
1,2,0	1111	1 1 1	111111	111111	1111	1111		1111	11111	11111		1 1 1 1 1		-
1,3,0	1111	1111	111111	111111	1111	1111		1111	1111					
1,4,0	1111		111111	111111	1111		1111	1111	11111	1111				-
1.5.0	1111	1111	111111	111111	1111	1111		11111	11111	11111		- 1 - 1	11111	
1,6,0	1111	1 1 1	111111	1111111	1111	1111	1111	1111	11111	11111	1111	1 1 1 1	1111	
1,7,0	1111		111111	111111	1111	1111		11111	11111	11111				
0,8,1	1111		111111	111111	1111	1111	1111	11111		11111				
0'6'!	1111		111111	111111	1111	1111	1111	11111	1111	11111	11111		1	
2,0,0	1111		111111	1111111	1111	1111	1111	11111	1111		1111			-
	1111	1111	111111	111111	1111	1111	1111	11111	1111	11111	11111	1 1 1 1		
1.1	1111	1111	111111	111111	1111	1111	1111	11111	1111	11111		1 1 1 1	-	
-	1111		111111	111111	1111	1111	1111	11111	1111	11111	1111		11111	
	1111	1 1 1 1	111111	111111		1111	1111	1111	11111	1111		1 1 1 1		-
		-	111111			1111								-
-		-	11111		111			1111			1111		-	-

IBM

- Area Definition These statements are used to assign core storage for input areas, output areas and working areas. Assigned areas will be utilized by the object program and may contain the data to be processed and/or the constants (fixed factors or combinations of characters) required in the object program when processing data. Area definition statements are never executed in the object program.
- 2. Instructions Most of the statements on the coding sheet will be the instructions, in symbolic language, which specify the job to be done by the object program. These entries will be translated and assembled as the object program.
- 3. Processor Processor control operations are commands to the processor which control operations provide the programmer with control over portions of the assembly process. Instructions of this type are never executed in the object program.

The following paragraphs explain the use of each field on the coding sheet. The term "field," as used in connection with the coding sheet applies collectively to the character positions under each heading. Space is provided at the top of the sheet to identify and date the program. These areas, i.e., Problem, Programmer and Date are not part of the source program and are not punched.

Page Number

A two-character page number entry sequences the program sheets. This number, which must be numerical, will be punched as the first two characters of each entry from a sheet.

Line Number (Columns 3-5)

A three-character line number sequences the statements on each coding sheet. The first twenty lines on the program sheet are prenumbered 010-200. The six non-numbered lines at the bottom of the sheet are provided for the entry of statements inadvertently omitted and/or for sheet extension. Insertions may be referenced by numbering the statement with the hundreds and tens digit of the statement it is to follow and completing the statement number by adding any one of the units digit 1-9. This allows for up to nine insertions between each statement. Insertions must be punched in their proper sequence when preparing the input tape. Each line number will be punched as the third, fourth, and fifth position of its associated statement.

Label (Columns 6-11)

A label is the symbolic name, chosen by the programmer, of an area being defined or an instruction referred to elsewhere in the program. All labels are assigned addresses in storage during assembly. A reference to a label in the program is a reference to the address of the area or instruction so labeled. Consequently, a programmer need not be concerned with actual memory locations. Only those items specifically referred to elsewhere in the program need have a label. Unnecessary labels delay the assembly process. Unlabeled instructions should contain blanks in the label field.

A label may consist of up to six alphameric characters, left-justified in the label field. The first character of the label must be alphabetic (A through Z). Special characters are not permitted in the label. It is best to choose labels which are descriptive of the area or instruction to which they are assigned. Labels which have an obvious meaning not only provide easily remembered references for the original programmer, but also assist others who may assume responsibility for the program.

Operation (Columns 12-15)

The four-digit operation field will contain the mnemonic representation of area definitions, 1620 machine language instructions, macro-instructions, and processor control operations. These mnemonics, which are abbreviations of the operation to be performed, must be left-justified. Actual 1620 machine codes are not permitted. A list of the mnemonic equivalents of machine codes is found on page 37.

The functions of area definitions, macro-instructions and processor control operations are described in the following portions of this bulletin. The functions of the 1620 machine language instructions are described in the IBM Reference Manual, "1620 Data Processing System," form A22-4500.

Operands and Remarks (Columns 16-75)

The operands and remarks field is used to specify the information which is to be operated upon, and may contain, if desired, any additional remarks concerning the statement. In the case of area definition type statements this field will contain constants if special constant areas are being defined.

For instructions, the operands and remarks field will contain, at most, four items, three of which are operands and the fourth the remarks. The first two operands may be the symbolic or actual addresses of data or instructions and will be assembled as the P and Q portions of the instruction. The third operand is used to set flags in the assembled instruction and is called the flag indicator operand. The final item is the remarks which may be associated with each statement. Items are separated from each other by commas. The entire statement is terminated by an end-of-line character. A description of the format and arrangement of the entries in the operands and remarks field is given on pages 20 and 21. A brief description of the types of addresses which may be used in the P and Q operands is given below.

The operands which will be assembled as the P and Q portions of instructions may be one of four types: actual, symbolic, immediate, and asterisk.

Actual

An actual address consists of five digits 00000-19999 and is, as the name implies, the actual 1620 core storage address of a piece of data or an instruction. High-order zeros of an actual address may be eliminated.

Symbolic

A symbolic address is the name assigned by the programmer to a piece of data or an instruction. A symbolic address is valid only if it is defined somewhere in the source program or if it is used as the label of an instruction. Symbolic addresses may contain from one to six letters or digits (no special characters) with the following restrictions:

- a) The first, or left-most, position must be alphabetic.
- b) Blanks may not appear within a symbol.

The example shown below contains both an actual address and a symbolic address.

	LABEL		OPE	RAT	ION		0P	ERA	NDS	& R	EM/	RKS	5																			
6		- 11	12		15	16		2	20			2	5		3	0			35			4	0			4	5			50	0	
			A,			T,C	T	A	L.,	,1	2,	2,	5,1	E	1		,				,	1		,	,	1	,	,	,			1
1	1.1		9	i	1	-	1			1 1																						

In this example, the data in the field whose <u>actual</u> address is 12251 is added to a field whose <u>symbolic</u> name (address) is TOTAL. The end-of-line character which terminates each statement is represented by the figure $\stackrel{\frown}{\mathbb{E}}$.

Immediate

An immediate address is used with immediate type instructions and represents the actual data to be used by the instruction. It may be absolute or symbolic. During assembly the processor will automatically place a flag over position Q_7 of an immediate instruction unless otherwise indicated by a flag indicator operand. For example, the statement

	LABEL	0	PERAT	ION	0	PERANDS &	REMARKS					
6		11	2	15	16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50
1	1 1 1 1	5	S,M		T,O,	Г,А,Ц,	1,0,0,2,3					

will cause the entire quantity 10023 to be subtracted from the field called TOTAL because the flag which terminates the field to be subtracted will be automatically placed over position Q_7 . However the statement

LA	BEL	0	PERAT	ON		OPERAND	S & REM	IARKS												
		11/13	2	15	16	20		25	30		35		4	0		4	5		50	
		15	S,M		T,O	TAL	,,1,0	0, 2, 3	, 1, 0,E	1 1		,	 ,							_

will cause just the quantity 23 to be subtracted from the field called TOTAL because the flag indicator operand will place the field terminating flag over position Q_{10} rather than Q_7 . There is one exception to this rule. That is, a transmit digit immediate instruction (TDM) does not require a flag; therefore, none will be set automatically by the processor.

Asterisk

The character, asterisk, when used as an operand will be interpreted by the processor as referencing the high-order (left-hand) position of the instruction itself. For example, the statement

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS & REMA	RKS 25	30	35	40	45	50
	BNF.	S,T,A,R,T,, *E	1111					111

indicates to the processor that Q portion of the instruction should contain the address of the instruction itself. If the assembled instruction is assigned address 1876 the assembled instruction would be 44 01234 01876 where START equals 1234. Thus, when executed in the object program, this instruction will examine its own left-hand position for a flag and either branch to instruction 01234 or continue on to the instruction located at 01888 on the basis of the examination.

Address Arithmetic

Address arithmetic may be used in conjunction with the P and Q operands. In this event an operand in the source program will contain more than one term. Thus, the address assembled in the P or Q portion of the instruction may be arithmetically adjusted if the first term is followed by an arithmetic operator and another term (or terms) representing the quantity of adjustment. The operators are, + for addition, - for subtraction, and * for multiplication. Arithmetically adjusted operands may take the following form

$$A + B * C + D$$

where A, B, C, and D may be either numerical quantities or symbols representing numerical quantities. In arithmetically adjusted operands, the multiplication operation is always performed first. A table containing examples of address arithmetic is shown in Figure 2b. Figure 2a contains the assigned address of the symbols used in 2b.

Symbols Used In Operands	Equivalent
ALPHA	1000
START	4000
L	12
ORIGIN	600
OUTPUT	15000

P or Q Operands	Equivalent After Assembly
START + 40,	04040
ALPHA - 30,	00970
START + 2 * L,	04024
START * 3,	12000
ALPHA * 5 + 40,	05040
4 * 13 + OUTPUT,	15052
START + 4 * L - 1,	04047
ALPHA * L,	12000
500 + 20 * 3 - 11,	00549
OUTPUT - L * ALPHA + ORIGIN	03600

Figure 2a

Figure 2b

Addresses which exceed 19999, are considered errors.

Address arithmetic could conceivably reduce the number of labels required by the source program by giving the programmer the ability to refer to a location which is a given number of locations away from a symbolic, actual, or asterisk operand. (Examples of address arithmetic on an asterisk operand is given in a later section of this bulletin, see page 21). Care must be exercised by the programmer when using address arithmetic since insertions or deletions could affect the adjusted operand. For example, if an operation is referred to an address plus 48 (e.g., a transfer to skip four instructions,) the programmer must insure that no new instructions are introduced within the four instructions to make the "plus 48" incorrect.

ORGANIZATION OF THE PROCESSOR

The translation and assembly function of the processor is a two-pass operation. The source data, i.e., the information as entered on the coding sheet, is the input to both passes. For the first pass, the source data may be entered either by means of a punched input tape or through the console typewriter. In the latter case a tape consisting of the input data is punched for use during pass 2.

Pass 1

During pass 1, the source data is read and a table of symbolic labels is prepared. Each symbolic label in the source program is placed in the table together with an equivalent address. By this process, storage areas are assigned to instructions, work areas, and constants. Error messages designating invalid entries will appear on the console typewriter during pass 1. In most cases, these errors may be corrected through the console.

Pass 2

The source data used in pass 1 is re-entered and processed. During this pass the instructions are assembled as follows:

- a) Operation codes are changed from mnemonic to actual machine language.
- b) Operands are processed. Symbolic operands are looked up in the symbol table for their equivalent addresses. Address arithmetic is performed, if necessary, to complete the operands. In addition, flags are set in the assembled instruction as specified in the flag indicator operand.
- c) The assembled instructions are punched out.

The output tape produced by pass 2 contains, in addition to assembled instructions and addresses in which to store them, the constants and other data required by the object program. Loading instructions will appear at the beginning of the object tape; addition and multiplication tables will be punched at the end of the object tape. Thus the data necessary to load the object program, plus the object program, constants, etc., are on one tape ready to be entered into the 1620. In addition to the object tape, output from pass two will include a listing produced at the console, if desired. A sample listing is shown on pages 34 and 35. Error messages will be typed during pass 2 and corrections may be made from the console.

PROGRAMMING THE IBM 1620 USING THE SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING SYSTEM

This section describes in detail the various steps to be followed in writing a program for the IBM 1620 using the Symbolic Programming System. The material contained in this section has been divided into the three categories of information required to write a symbolic program: Area Definitions, Instructions, and Processor Control Operations. In an effort to make this material more easily understandable, a numerical integration program (pages 28-33) is used as a theme from which examples are extracted to illustrate pertinent parts of the text.

AREA DEFINITIONS

In the course of performing its given function, a program will require the use of "input/output" areas, "work" areas, and "constants". An input and/or output area is, as might be expected, a portion of core storage assigned as an area into which a record, portion of a record, or piece of data will be read during input, or an area from which a record, portion of a record, or piece of data will be punched or typed during output. A work area is a portion of core storage assigned as an area into which a record, part of a record or piece of data will be transferred for processing. A constant is a fixed quantity or item of information which will remain the same throughout the course of the program or a phase of the program.

In programming the 1620, the input and output areas, work areas, and areas for storing constants must be assigned in storage for all records and any other data which are to be processed by the program. Such records and data normally consist of fields which are of known length and arrangement. Unless otherwise specified, areas being defined will be automatically assigned to core storage locations in the order in which they are defined in the program.

The use of symbolic programming enables the programmer to refer to input and output areas, work areas, and constants by their symbolic name without regard to their physical location within core storage. For example, the sample program used for reference utilizes a work area which is defined as a seven position field whose symbolic name (label) is DELTAX and a seven digit constant (0100000) whose symbol is X. To transfer this constant to the work area for processing merely requires an instruction

TF DELTAX, X (Transmit constant field X to DELTAX.)

To assign core storage space and to define the input and output areas, work areas, and constants requires the use of area definition codes. Area definition statements are never executed in an object program. Following are the area definition mnemonic operation codes.

Code	Description
DS & DAS	Define Symbol
DC & DAC	Define Constant
DSA	Define Symbolic Address
DSB	Define Symbolic Block.

Define Symbol (DS)

The mnemonic operation code, DS, may be used to define any contiguous portion of core storage as an area reserved for <u>numerical</u> data manipulation (i.e., input, output, or work area). The label (or symbolic name) by which this area may be referenced is placed in columns 6-11 of the coding sheet. The operation code DS must appear in the operation field (12-15).

The length of the field being defined must appear as the first operand. This operand may be an absolute value or a symbolic name. If a symbolic name is used the symbol must have been previously defined as an absolute value (see below). "Previously defined" means the definition of the symbol used must appear in a statement of the source program, which precedes the one in which it is used. Address arithmetic may be used with this operand.

The address in core storage of the field being defined may be assigned by the programmer or the programmer may wish to let the processor assign the address. In the latter case, the statement may be terminated after the first operand. If the programmer wishes to assign the address, a second operand, which may be symbolic or actual, is used and the address of the field will be made equivalent to this operand. Since data fields are addressed by their rightmost (low-order) digit, the processor will assign this position as the address of the field. Address arithmetic may be used with the second operand. If the second operand is symbolic it also must have been previously defined. Addresses assigned by the processor.

To define a symbol without assigning any storage, i.e., to define it as an absolute value, a DS statement is used; however, in this case the first operand is omitted (or written as 0) and the second operand represents the equivalent value. The second operand may be an absolute value or a symbol; however, the symbol must again have been previously defined. To define storage which will not be referred to symbolically, the label of the DS statement may be omitted.

Several types of DS statements are explained below.

LABEL	OPERAT	ION	OF	ERANDS	REMA	RKS												
6	11 12	15	16	20		25		30		- 1	35		40	45	5		50	
DE,LTA	XD, S	1	7E)				,	 _				 _		 1 1				
											100					12.54		100

defines an area in core storage, seven positions in length into which an X value will be placed during calculation. The omission of the second operand indicates that the processor is to assign the address.

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS &	REMARKS					
6 11	12 15	16 20	25	30	35	40	45	50
SUM	D.S.	. 1 2 9 3 0	Ê					

will assign to the area whose symbol is SUM the address 12930. This field may be referred to as SUM or 12930 since the latter will be its actual address.

LABEL	(OPERATI	ON		OPERANDS	& REMARKS					
5	11	12	15	16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50
	. 1	D.S.	.	1	2E .		111111				

will define the symbol L as being equivalent to the value 12. Subsequent uses of the symbol L in an operand are allowed since it has been defined.

It should be noted that an area defined with a DS statement is always addressed at the rightmost position. Therefore, in order to use this area for input/output the leftmost digit must be addressed. This is accomplished by subtracting a number, which is one less than the length of the area, from the address of the area. The operand of an instruction which reads numerical data into the DELTAX field is written as DELTAX-6.

Define Symbol (DAS)

To define a field which will contain alphameric information (generally used for input/output areas) a define symbol statement with an operation code DAS is used. This type definition is much like the DS; however, certain differences do exist. First of all, the operand indicating length will be doubled by the processor to accommodate the alphameric coding of data.

Secondly, areas used for alphameric input and output are addressed by the "numerical" portion of the left-hand (high-order) position of the field. This address must be odd-numbered. For example, the word TEN when converted to alphameric coding requires six core positions and is coded as: 634555. The first, third and fifth positions represent the "zone" portion of the T, E, and N, respectively, while the second, fourth, and sixth the numerical portion. The address of this field must be odd-numbered and reference the numerical portion of the T (3). If the processor assigns the address, adjustments will be made, if necessary, to make the address odd.

The following example illustrates a DAS statement.

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERA	ANDS & REMAR	IKS					
- 11	12 15	16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50
LITLE	DAS.	3.00				1111			

defines an area for input/output which will contain a title consisting of 30 characters. The processor will assign 60 positions in core storage to accommodate alphameric coding. The listing will indicate this by typing 30 X 2 when this statement is assembled and listed. The omission of the second operand will cause the processor to assign an address.

Define Symbol (DS)

The mnemonic operation code, DS, may be used to define any contiguous portion of core storage as an area reserved for <u>numerical</u> data manipulation (i.e., input, output, or work area). The label (or symbolic name) by which this area may be referenced is placed in columns 6-11 of the coding sheet. The operation code DS must appear in the operation field (12-15).

The length of the field being defined must appear as the first operand. This operand may be an absolute value or a symbolic name. If a symbolic name is used the symbol must have been previously defined as an absolute value (see below). "Previously defined" means the definition of the symbol used must appear in a statement of the source program, which precedes the one in which it is used. Address arithmetic may be used with this operand.

The address in core storage of the field being defined may be assigned by the programmer or the programmer may wish to let the processor assign the address. In the latter case, the statement may be terminated after the first operand. If the programmer wishes to assign the address, a second operand, which may be symbolic or actual, is used and the address of the field will be made equivalent to this operand. Since data fields are addressed by their rightmost (low-order) digit, the processor will assign this position as the address of the field. Address arithmetic may be used with the second operand. If the second operand is symbolic it also must have been previously defined. Addresses assigned by the processor.

To define a symbol without assigning any storage, i.e., to define it as an absolute value, a DS statement is used; however, in this case the first operand is omitted (or written as 0) and the second operand represents the equivalent value. The second operand may be an absolute value or a symbol; however, the symbol must again have been previously defined. To define storage which will not be referred to symbolically, the label of the DS statement may be omitted.

Several types of DS statements are explained below.

5 1112 1516 20 25 30 35 40 45 50	LABEL	1111		OPERANDS & R						- 22
	,	11 12	15 16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50

defines an area in core storage, seven positions in length into which an X value will be placed during calculation. The omission of the second operand indicates that the processor is to assign the address.

	OPERATION 12 15 16	OPERANDS & REI	MARKS 25	30	35	40	45	50
S.U.M.	D ₁ S ₁ ,	1.2.9.3.00			1 1 1 1		40	30

will assign to the area whose symbol is SUM the address 12930. This field may be referred to as SUM or 12930 since the latter will be its actual address.

LABEL	OPERATIO	N.	OPERANDS	& REMARKS					
5	11 12	15 16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50
	DS	1. 1	1.2E						

will define the symbol L as being equivalent to the value 12. Subsequent uses of the symbol L in an operand are allowed since it has been defined.

It should be noted that an area defined with a DS statement is always addressed at the rightmost position. Therefore, in order to use this area for input/output the leftmost digit must be addressed. This is accomplished by subtracting a number, which is one less than the length of the area, from the address of the area. The operand of an instruction which reads numerical data into the DELTAX field is written as DELTAX-6.

Define Symbol (DAS)

To define a field which will contain <u>alphameric</u> information (generally used for input/output areas) a define symbol statement with an operation code DAS is used. This type definition is much like the DS; however, certain differences do exist. First of all, the operand indicating length will be doubled by the processor to accommodate the alphameric coding of data.

Secondly, areas used for alphameric input and output are addressed by the "numerical" portion of the left-hand (high-order) position of the field. This address must be odd-numbered. For example, the word TEN when converted to alphameric coding requires six core positions and is coded as: 634555. The first, third and fifth positions represent the "zone" portion of the T, E, and N, respectively, while the second, fourth, and sixth the numerical portion. The address of this field must be odd-numbered and reference the numerical portion of the T (3). If the processor assigns the address, adjustments will be made, if necessary, to make the address odd.

The following example illustrates a DAS statement.

LABEL II	OPERATION	OPERANDS &	REMARKS 25	30	35	40	45	50
LITLE.	D _i A _i S _i	3,0Œ						

defines an area for input/output which will contain a title consisting of 30 characters. The processor will assign 60 positions in core storage to accommodate alphameric coding. The listing will indicate this by typing 30 X 2 when this statement is assembled and listed. The omission of the second operand will cause the processor to assign an address.

During an internal field transmission in which an input/output area defined with a DAS is utilized the area must be addressed at its right hand (low-order) position. This address may be achieved through address arithmetic, i.e., TITLE +2 * 30 - 2.

Define Constant (DC)

The label field of a constant definition will contain the symbolic name by which the constant will be known. The operation code for a numerical constant is DC. The first operand indicates the length of the constant field and the second operand is the constant. If the programmer wishes to assign an address to this constant, a third operand may be used. Omission of the third operand causes the processor to assign the address. Constants are addressed by the rightmost (low-order) position of the field.

The first and third operands may be symbolic or actual and may be arithmetically adjusted. To be valid, a symbolic operand must have been previously defined. During assembly, the processor will place a flag over the left-hand position of the constant field. Should the length of the field be greater than the constant specified, the constant will be right-justified in the field with high order zeros inserted. A length of field which is smaller than the constant is invalid.

The constant must be in the form of an unsigned integer for a positive number and a signed integer for a negative number. A negative number produces a flag over the units position during assembly. A record mark may be used in the constant but must be in the units position and must be written as @. Negative constants containing a record mark (@) in the units position will have a flag placed over the digit preceding the record mark. Constants may not exceed 50 characters.

If the constants 0100000 and -0004337769 are required they may be defined as follows:

LABEL	OPERAT	ION		OPERA	NDS 8	REM	ARKS																
6 11	12	15	16		20		25			30		 3	5		40			45	5	_	5	0	_
ζ, , , , , ,	DC.	1	7,	, 1, 0	0,0	0,0	Œ.		_					 _								1	
CO,N,S,T,	D _i C _i	,	1,	0,,,-	4,3	3,7	7,6	9 E			i			 1	1		1			_			1

In both cases the length of field is greater than the constant, and the addresses of these constants are assigned by the processor.

Define Constant (DAC)

To define a constant consisting of alphameric data, the operation code DAC is used. This type definition is the same as the DC with certain exceptions. First, the operand indicating length will be doubled to accommodate the alphameric coding of data. Second, the address assigned to an alphameric constant references the "numerical" portion of the left-hand (high order) character of the field. This address must be odd-numbered.

In the sample program the constant

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS &	REMARKS	30				
O,U,T,P,U,T	$D_iA_iC_i$	3, 1, , F,O,R,	,D,E,L,T,A		0,0,,	$A_{1}R_{1}E_{1}A_{2}=0$,0,0,0,0,0	0,@ E , , ,

was assigned address 03101 in core storage. This address is the core location of the "numerical" portion of the F. (Second actual core position of the constant.) The entire constant occupies 62 core positions. A fifty character constant (maximum allowed) will occupy 100 positions of core. A flag will be set over the left hand position of the field. Addressing this constant for internal core transmission requires an address:

It should be noted that in the sample program this constant was used as the output area. Quantities obtained in the calculations replaced the zeros of the constant.

Define Symbolic Address (DSA)

It may be desirable at some point in a program to store a series of addresses as constants. These addresses may be used for instruction initialization or modification, or for setting up a table of addresses through which the programmer may index to modify a routine.

The operation code for this statement is DSA. Each entry (symbolic or actual) in the operands field will cause its equivalent machine address to be stored as a five digit constant. The constants are stored adjacent to each other with a flag over the high-order position of each. The label field of this statement must contain the symbolic name by which the table of constants may be referenced. An address at which this table is stored in core storage may not be assigned by the programmer nor may any remarks be associated with the statement. The address assigned by the processor is the address at which the right-hand digit of the first constant will be located.

In the following example, the symbols used are equivalent to the addresses shown in Figure 2a (page 11).

LABEL II	OPERATION	OPERANDS & RI	MARKS 25	30	35	40	45	50
T,A,B,L,E,	D _i S _i A _i	ALPHA, O	R,I,G,I,N	, 1,2,3,4	, O,U,T,P	U,T,-,5,0E		

The constant will be stored as

01000006000123414950

If the first digit of the entire constant is located at 01200, then the address equivalent to TABLE is 01204.

Define Symbol Block (DSB)

To define an area of storage for the storing of a numerical array a DSB statement is used. The label of this statement will be converted to the address at which the first element of the array is stored (i.e., the right-hand position of the first element). The first operand indicates the size of each element; the second indicates the number of elements. Either or both operands may be symbolic or actual. (If symbolic, the symbol must have been previously defined). If the programmer wishes to assign the address, a third operand is required. For example, to store an array of 75 elements with each element containing 15 digits, the statement would be

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS &	REMARKS 25	30	35	40	45	50
RRAY	D,S,B,	1,5,,7,5,,1	5,1,4E,			11111		

In this example, the array would begin at location 1500 (left most position of the first 15 digit element). ARRAY is equivalent to 1514 (address of first element).

The area definition statements just described provide the object program with the input/output areas, work areas, and constants it requires to accomplish its assigned task. The statements discussed never produce instructions which are executed in the object program. The entries, DS, DAS, and DSB merely define storage. The entries, DC, DAC, and DSA define storage and produce, on the object tape, the machine address of the area being defined and the constant(s) which will be stored in this area. Constants are then loaded with the object tape.

Area definition statements may be entered at any point in the source program. However, it is wise to place these definitions off by themselves (not within the instruction area), preferably at the beginning or end of the program. Otherwise, the programmer must take special care to branch around the area defined so the program will not attempt to execute something in a data area as an instruction.

No statement in the source language may exceed 75 characters.

1620 SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING INSTRUCTIONS

This section discusses the operations (instructions), written in symbolic language, which will be translated by the processor into 1620 machine language. The function of each machine language code is discussed in the IBM Reference Manual, "1620 Data Processing System", form A22-4500.

Each instruction in symbolic language may contain a label if so desired, must contain a mnemonic operation code, and may have none or as many as three operands. Remarks may be associated with each instruction. The entire instruction statement is terminated by an end-of-line character.

Label

Any instruction in the source program may be labeled. Generally speaking, a labeled instruction is one which is referenced or used as a point of reference elsewhere in the program. Many times an instruction which is labeled is the first instruction of a subroutine. For example, the first instruction of the sample program is appropriately labeled START. A transfer or branch to the first instruction of the program can be effected by coding the instruction, B START. Any instruction between the one labeled START and the one labeled ASINE may be referenced by the operand START+24 (third instruction), START+60 (sixth instruction), or ASINE-12 (eighth instruction).

Operation Code

For each machine language operation code, there exists a mnemonic abbreviation. For example, the operation code 27, Branch and Transmit, is written as BT. A list of the machine language codes and their mnemonic equivalents is found on page 37. Note on this list the eight codes marked with an asterisk. These are the codes which require modifiers in the Q operand. When the direct mnemonic abbreviation is used for one of these codes, the programmer must supply the Q operand in absolute.

The 1620 Symbolic Programming System does, however, make available for these type codes a mnemonic representation for many, and in most cases all, of the several operations the code may perform. For example, the BI (Branch Indicator) instruction has twelve different mnemonics which represent nine of the possible fifteen configurations. The same is true for the BNI instruction. Input/Output instructions (i.e., Read, Write, Dump) have unique mnemonics for every possible configuration of these instructions (see page 38).

Thus when coding an instruction to write alphamerically on the console typewriter, the programmer may code

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS & RE	MARKS					
	12 15	16 20	25	30	35	40	45	50
	W.A.	O,U,T,P,U,T,	0,0,1,0,0					1111

where 01 is the absolute modifier specifying the typewriter and is necessary to complete the instruction. Or the programmer may code

ı	LABEL	OPERA	TION	0	PERANDS &	REMARKS					
		11 12	15	16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50
		WA	TV	OU	r,P,U,T.	ð					

where the unique code WATY is all the information required as to the mode and unit desired. The processor will convert the mnemonic code to the proper machine language code (39) and insert the necessary modifier.

For the six operations (error indicator checks) of each of the codes BI and BNI for which no unique mnemonic is available, the programmer must use the mnemonic BI or BNI and must supply the modifier. A list of the unique mnemonics and their equivalents is found on page 38.

Operands and Remarks

For each instruction, up to four items may be entered in this field; a maximum of three operands, and remarks if they are desired. These four items are coded and subsequently punched on tape in "free" form. That is to say, a fixed number of positions is not assigned to each item. Rather, each item desired in the instruction is separated from the following item by a comma, with an end-of-line character terminating the entire statement. At most, three commas will be used since a comma need not follow the last item entered. An instruction in which all four items are used is as follows:

	LABEL		OPERA	TION		OPERANDS &	REMARKS						1
6		_11	12	15	16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50	5
_	1.10	_	T.F.		D,	E,L,T,A,X,	X , 8,	T.R.A.N.S.M.	T, VA	LUE, O	F. INC	REMEN	TE

In this example, DELTAX and X are the symbolic operands which will be converted to the P and Q portions of the assembled instruction. The third operand will cause a flag to be set in position Q_8 of the assembled instruction. The remainder constitute the remarks. Remarks serve no function other than to aid the programmer when coding. This sequence of P and Q operands, flag indicator operands, and remarks must be followed in all instructions.

An instruction need not, however, contain all four items. Any one, or more than one may be omitted. For example, if the flag indicator operand and remarks are unnecessary, the end-of-line character would follow the Q operand and terminate the statement.

Example

	LABEL		OPERAT	10N		PERAND	S & REMAI									reses								
_		11	12	15	-	20		25	_	30	_	3	5	_	_	40	_	_	-4	15	_	_	50	_
1	111	1	T, F	1	$D_{i}E_{i}$	$L_i T_i A_i$	x_{1}, x_{0}	Ξ)	1		1.1	1.1		1	į.		1	i			1			- 1

One rule must be followed when omitting an item. If an operand is omitted and there are more operands or remarks to follow, a comma which normally would terminate the omitted item must be present. For example, to omit the flag indicator operand and provide remarks, the format of the operands and remarks field would be:

LABEL	OPERATION	0	PERANDS &	REMARKS					
1	1 12 15	16	20	25	30	35	40	45	50
	T, F	D,E,	LTAX,	X , , , TR	A,N,S,M,I,T,	V,A,L,U,E	, O,F	,I,N,C,R	EMENTE

Commas indicating omission need not be present in statements in which the omitted item(s) follows the last item of data desired for the instruction. For example, in the statement in which both the flag indicator operand and the remarks are omitted, the end-of-line character follows the second operand with no intervening commas required.

An omitted P or Q operand will cause zeros to be placed in the P or Q portion of the assembled instruction.

The flag indicator operand specifies the positions of the assembled instruction, which are to contain flags. These positions are numbered, from left to right, 0-11 and must be listed sequentially. For example, if positions 2, 7 and 10 are to be flagged, the flag indicator operand should be 2710, not 2107. All positions may be flagged if desired. The operand would be 01234567891011 and must be written in that order.

If the flag indicator operand is omitted, normally no flags will be set. The exception to this has already been shown. All immediate instructions (except TDM) will have a flag set automatically in position Q_7 if the flag indicator operand is omitted. If the operand is present, only the position(s) indicated will be flagged.

Pages 8 to 11 describe various types of addresses which may be used in the P and Q operands. Examples of address arithmetic are also given. Address arithmetic is permitted on all types of operands including the asterisk. For example, an asterisk operand references the left hand (high-order) position of the instruction in which it is contained. Therefore to branch to an instruction five instructions ahead, the present instruction could be coded as B *+60. An asterisk operand may also be arithmetically adjusted using the multiplication operator (an asterisk). Thus, the instruction B *+5*L, where L=12, is the same as the instruction B *+60. The second asterisk in this operand indicates multiplication.

The sample program on pages 29 to 33 contains many examples of address arithmetic used in conjunction with symbolic and asterisk operands.

Macro-instructions

A macro-instruction has been previously defined as an instruction which, during assembly, generates more than one machine language instruction. For the 1620 Symbolic Programming System, thirteen macro-instructions are available. Each of these macros, when used in a source program, will generate the instructions which provide linkage to one of thirteen subroutines. The subroutines, which are of two categories called arithmetic and functional, are described in the bulletin "IBM 1620 Subroutines: Preliminary Specifications," form J26-4203. The subroutines and their associated macro-instruction mnemonic operation codes are shown in the following chart:

	ARITH	METIC		FUNCTIONAL	
Fixed	Point	Floating Po	int	Floating Point	W 2000
Title	Macro	Title	Macro	Title	Macro
Divide	DIV	Floating Add Floating Subtract Floating Multiply Floating Divide	FA FS FM FD	Floating Square Root Floating Sine Floating Cosine Floating Arctangent Floating Exponential (natural) Floating Exponential (base 10) Floating Logarithm (natural) Floating Logarithm (base 10)	FSQR FSIN FCOS FATN FEX FEXT FLN FLOG

NOTE: The bulletin (Form J26-4203) discussing the thirteen subroutines available through the use of macro-instructions, also contains general discussions of "linkage" instructions and "floating point arithmetic."

In addition to creating linkage to the subroutine desired, the use of a macro-instruction will cause the subroutine(s) required to be punched into the object program tape. The necessary subroutines will thus be loaded into core storage during the loading of the object program. Incorporating the subroutines into the object program requires, however, that all subroutines be available to the processor during assembly. Therefore, a separate tape (provided by IBM) containing all of the subroutines must be assembled in conjunction with the source program. This tape must be entered during both passes of assembly and must follow the source program tape. The subroutine(s) required will be selected by the processor from this tape, assigned core storage space and punched into the object program tape for subsequent loading as part of the object program.

During the processing of the source program, the first occurrence of a macro-instruction related to any one of the four floating point arithmetic subroutines will cause all four floating point arithmetic subroutines to be punched into the object program tape. Subsequent macros for these subroutines will, when encountered by the processor, merely cause the linkage to the desired subroutine to be generated.

If called for through the use of any one macro, the floating point arithmetic subroutines will, during the loading of the object program, always be loaded into core storage beginning at location 00402. That is to say, these subroutines are not relocatable and thus cannot be placed in varying machine locations as desired.

The floating point functional subroutines and the fixed point arithmetic subroutine (Divide) will appear on the subroutine tape in a form of symbolic language and will be relocatable. These subroutines, when called for by a macro, will be selected by the processor from the subroutine tape and will be assigned to an area in core storage which immediately follows the last location assigned to the source program by the processor. Care must be exercised by the programmer to provide, between the last location assigned by the processor and 19999, sufficient space to accommodate the subroutines called for.

Each floating point functional subroutine and the fixed divide subroutine on the tape will be complete with the constants and working areas it requires for execution. During assembly, however, those constants and working areas which may be common to several of the subroutines will be assembled into the object program only once. Sharing common work areas and constants eliminates redundancy and thereby minimizes storage requirements. In order to estimate the amount of storage required by the subroutines to be called for, it may be wise to total the number of instructions in each subroutine desired and the amount of working areas and constants associated with each subroutine. This will yield the most conservative figure.

It should be noted that the use of any macro-instruction related to a floating point functional subroutine will also automatically cause all four floating point arithmetic subroutines to be punched into the object program tape and subsequently loaded into the fixed area of core storage assigned to these arithmetic subroutines. Also, since the Arctangent subroutine and both Logarithm subroutines (natural and base 10) require the fixed point divide subroutine, the macros FATN, FLN, and FLOG will call in the Divide subroutine.

Macro-instructions for the Arithmetic Subroutines — The macro-instructions required for the arithmetic subroutines are written as follows:

6	LABE	L	OPERATIO	N 15 16	OPE	RAND 20	5 & 1	REMAI	25	5			30			35	5				40	0				45	5				50		
			FA	Α.,	В	ê,		11		i	14		1		1	ï		1	r	1	i.	1	,	,	4	1	,	,		_	1		
,	1.1	1.1	FS	Aı,	B	Ē,		13		ı		-	1		ï	1	1	1	,	1	1		1	1	,	1	1	1	_	,		_	
i	1.1	1.1	F _M	Α,,	B	Ē,	1		1		11		-		1	1	1	1	r	1	1	1	1	1		L	1	_	1	1	1		_
1	11	11	F.D.	A.	B(E) 1	1	11									1	į.	1	î	1	1	1	1	1	1	ı	1	1	1	1		
1	11	1.1	D ₁ I ₁ V	Α,,	В	S	H, I	F	С,	,L	Q(E)	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Y	1	1	1	1	1	i		1	1	_	1		_
,		1.7	1, 1, 1		1. 1	1 1		1 1			10			1 1		1	,	1		1	1	,	1	1	1	V.	1	1	1	_	r		

In each case the A and B operands represent the addresses of the quantities to be added, subtracted, etc. For the fixed divide routine two additional operands, SHIFT and LQ, are required. The SHIFT operand is described in the following paragraph. The fourth operand (LQ) indicates the length of the quotient desired by the programmer. All operands (A, B, SHIFT, and LQ) may be symbolic or actual, and may be used in conjunction with address arithmetic. Remarks are not permitted in macro-instructions.

The fixed divide subroutine (DIV) accomplishes division through successive subtraction. It is therefore necessary to specify the position of the divisor with relation to the dividend when the first subtraction takes place. This is specified in the SHIFT operand. The SHIFT operand represents the displacement of the right hand position of the divisor in relation to the right hand position of the dividend. If SHIFT is positive, the divisor is displaced to the left the number of positions specified by the operand; if negative, displacement is to the right. The SHIFT operand should be such that no more than nine subtractions will take place before the first overdraw is encountered; otherwise, a divide-overflow will be indicated.

When floating addition or subtraction is executed, the A operand is replaced by the sum or difference. In the case of floating multiplication or division, the product or quotient is stored with its low-order digit at 00099. The low-order digit of the quotient generated in the fixed point divide subroutine is stored at 00099 minus the length of the divisor.

The linkage instructions which the processor generates for the macros FA and FS are equivalent to the following symbolic instructions:

LABEL 11	OPERATION	16	OPERANDS &	REMARKS 25			30				35	j			4	0			4	15				50	
	T,F,M	S	U,B,R,+,K,	* +3	5 E	160			ř.			_			1	_		_			-	_	_	_	-1
			$U_{i}B_{i}R_{i}+C_{i}$			1	1_1		1	1	_	_		-1	-1-	i	1	_	1	1	1	1	1	_	-1
	В	S	$U_1B_1R_1$, B_1	, 7 E		-		ш	_	_	L	1	1	_	1	1	1	1	1_1		1	1	1	ш	-1
	111	13		1 1 1	1 1 1	10	1 1	-4	1	1	1	1	111	- 17	1	1	1	1		1	1	1	_		-1

where SUBR is the address of the first instruction to be executed in the desired subroutine; C and K are constants supplied by the processor; and A and B represent the addresses as specified in the macro.

For the macros FM and FD, the instructions generated are equivalent to the following symbolic instructions:

L	ABEL		OPERATION		OPERA	NDS &	REMAR	KS																					
		- 11	12 15	16	2	0		25		_	3	0	_		3	55			-	40		_	_	45	 _	_	5.0	-	_
			T,F,M,	SU	BR.	1,1	1,,,*	+	3,5	E		,	1			_	_		_	_1	-	1	_		-	-1		_	1
					BR							1	_		-		1	1		_	1	1	1	1	- 1	4	1	1	ï
			В	SU	BR	B	7Æ)	1	i i	4	1	1	1 1	-1	1	1	1		ı	1	1	1		- 1	1	1	_	L

where the symbols are the same as described above.

The fixed-divide macro generates the following linkage instructions:

LABEL s II	OPERATION 12 15	16	OPER/	ANDS &	REMA	RKS 25			30				35				40				4	5				50	
	T,F,M	SU	J _B R	+,K	, *,-	-,3,	5 E				1	,				1				_1			_			1	_
	TFM	SIL	BR	+,C	, A(Ē) ,	1	1		i	ī	i	1		1	ī	1	1	1	1	ı	i	i			ī	î
	В	SI	J_1B_1R	, B	. 70	ر (و	1			-1	1	i		ш	-1	1	1	1		-1	1	i	1	1 1	- 1	1	_
	D _i S _i A _i	Х.,	YE	سا	1.1	ш				_	1	1	1		-	1	1			_1	r	1	211	1.1		1	1
1111	1.1.1	1			11	1				i		ï				1	1						1	1.1		_	_

The quantities represented above by X and Y will be computed by the processor using the SHIFT and LQ operands. These quantities will be utilized in the fixed divide subroutine.

Macro-instructions for the Functional Subroutines — The macro-instructions for the floating point functional subroutines are written as follows:

	LABEL	OPERATION	OPERAN	IDS & REM	IARKS					
6		12 15		00	25	30	35	40	45	50
	1111	FSQR	A, BE				111111	1111		
ì	1111	FSIN	A., BE	111						
		FCOS	A, BE			111111	11111			
		FATN	A, BE	111			1111			
	1111	F,E,X	A,, BE	111				1111		
1	1111	FEXT	$A_{\perp,\perp}B(E)$			111111	1111			
i	LELL	F,L,N,	A_{ι}, B_{\bullet}			111111	1111	1111		
		FLOG	A, BE	111			1111			
1	1111	111		111						

where B is the address of the argument to be evaluated and A is the address at which the programmer wishes the result to be placed. These addresses may be actual or symbolic and may be used in conjunction with address arithmetic. Asterisk may also be used as an address; it will reference the leftmost position of the first linkage instruction generated. The linkage instructions generated by any one of the above macros is as follows:

	LABEL	OPERATION		OPERANI	DS &	REMARI	(S																							
6		12 15	16	20			25	_		3	0		_	3	5	_	_	_	40		_	_	4	5	_	_	_	50		_
		TFM	SL	BR+	C.	*,+	3,	5 (_	-		_			_	-1	i	1	ī	1	1			1	_	
_		TFM	SI	BR+	K,	AE	_	-	1	1				1		_			_	-	1		1	1	1	1	1	1	_	_
1	1111	$B_{\perp \perp \perp}$	SL	BR.	В.,	7E		1		1		1	1	1		_		ш	_	-	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	_	1
	1.1.1.1	20 Y Y		1 1 1						-			- 1	1	1	1				1	1	1	ï	1	1	i	i	1		

where SUBR is the address of the first instruction to be executed in the desired subroutine, C and K are constants supplied by the processor, and A and B represent the addresses specified in the macro.

General Notes on 1620 Macro-instructions — Each of the subroutines for which a linkage is generated will compute the return address and transfer to this address at the completion of the subroutine when it is executed in the object program. Note that the information provided to the subroutine by the linkage instructions includes the necessary data to compute this return address.

A macro-instruction may be labeled in the source program. During assembly, a reference to this label will be a reference to the first instruction generated by this macro. Care must be exercised by the programmer when using address arithmetic with this label. For example, suppose in the source program the following entries are made:

LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS &	REMARKS 25	30	35	40	45	50
/I.A.X.	F.A.	A.L.P.H.A.	BETAE					
1111	M	A,R,E,A,,D	E, L, T, A, X,	ىب. ۋ	1111			
				1111				1111

Four instructions will result from this sequence, the first three of which are linkage to a floating add subroutine. MAX is the address of the first instruction of the linkage. Now suppose at a later point in the source program, the programmer decides to branch to the multiply instruction and codes B MAX+12. Since the processor has assigned the address equivalent to MAX to the first linkage instruction generated, a branch to MAX+12 is a branch to the second linkage instruction rather than to the desired multiply instruction. Similar precautions should be exercised if the operands of the macro-instruction are being modified by another instruction in the source program. A reference to MAX+5 is not a reference to the P operand of the macro but a reference to the P operand of the first linkage instruction generated.

PROCESSOR CONTROL OPERATIONS

For the 1620 Symbolic Programming System, two types of commands are provided to control the assembly process. These commands are Define Origin and Define End. They are never executed in the object program. In addition to a description of these two operation codes, this section includes a discussion of Comments.

Define Origin (DORG)

During program assembly, the 1620 SPS processor assigns core storage addresses to instructions, input/output areas, work areas, and constants, as they are encountered. If not otherwise specified, addresses will be automatically assigned beginning with an address which will be equivalent to 00402 plus the storage required for the arithmetic floating point subroutines. (The precise address will be made available at a later date.) Should the programmer wish to initiate address assignment at another location, he may do so through the use of a DORG statement. However, if any one of the macros which results in the incorporation of the four floating point arithmetic subroutines into the object program is used, the programmer should avoid specifying an origin which is less than the minimum address at which the processor automatically begins assignment. Failure to do so will result in the address assignment to begin where specified by the programmer and thereby cause the subroutines to be loaded over a portion of the object program.

The code DORG must appear in the operation field. The address at which assignment is to begin is specified as the first operand. A DORG statement may not be labeled. Origin statements may be used at any point in the source program. All entries subsequent to the DORG will be assigned addresses beginning at the particular location specified by the programmer. Addresses specified may be symbolic or actual. If symbolic, the symbol must have been previously defined.

Define End (DEND)

The statemend DEND is the last statement entered in the source program and is a command to the processor that all statements of the source program have been processed. A DEND statement may also be used to begin the execution of the object program immediately after loading. This is accomplished by the presence of an operand representing the starting address of the program. This operand may be symbolic or actual. Should the operand specifying the starting address be omitted the 1620 will halt at the completion of loading the object program and the operator must take steps to manually start the program.

Comments

Provisions have been made for the programmer to insert lines of descriptive information in the source program. This information, when encountered by the processor, will not be assembled nor will it affect the assembling procedure.

Comments are indicated by an asterisk in the first position of the label field, and the comments may begin immediately after the asterisk. See sample program on pages 29 to 33 for examples of comments.

SAMPLE PROGRAM

In order to illustrate some of the most common 1620 Symbolic Programming usages, a sample program is presented here. The program represents a numerical integration program which calculates

$$\int_{0}^{1} \sqrt{3x^2}$$
 arcsine x

The area under the curve, $\sqrt{3x^2}$ arcsine x, is desired with $0 \le x \le 1$.

AREA =
$$\sqrt{3x^2}$$
 arcsine x

The arcsine is computed using the following Hastings' approximation: *

arcsine
$$x = \frac{\pi}{2} - \sqrt{1-x} S(x)$$

 $0 \le x \le 1$

Approximation:

$$S*(x) = a_0 + a_1x + a_2x^2 + a_3x^3 + a_4x^4 + a_5x^5$$

$$a_0 = 1.5707,95207$$
 $a_3 = -.0449,58884$ $a_1 = -.2145,12362$ $a_4 = .0193,49939$ $a_5 = -.0043,37769$

The integral is computed by Simpsom's rule:

$$\int_{X=0}^{X=n} F(x) dx = \frac{\Delta x}{3} \left[F_0 + F_n + 4(F_1 + F_3 + \dots + F_{n-1}) + 2(F_2 + F_4 + \dots + F_{n-2}) \right]$$

The source program coding is shown on pages 29 to 33. An output listing of the object program is shown on pages 34 and 35.

^{*}Hastings, Cecile Jr., <u>Approximations for Digital Computers</u>, p. 161, Princeton University Press, Princeton, New Jersey, Copyright 1955 by the Rand Corporation.

IBM

1620 Symbolic Programming System Coding Sheet

Form No. X26-1227

S

Program Numerical Integration (Sample Program)

Page No. 0,1 of Date_ Programmed by

	75	E.XE	LEE	-	:	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	70	AREA, UNDER, THE, CURVE, SORT, (3X, *, *3,), *ARCS, INEXE	WHERE X, LIES, BETWEEN, 10, AND, 11., THE, AREA, IS, COMPUTED, BY, SIMPSONS, RULER				-			1111	1 1 1	1111			1111	1 1 1 1	1111	1111	1111		1111	111	1111	1111			-
		*AR.	S'N'O' S	五五五	-	-	-		-		1 1 1	-	-	1 1 1	111	1 1 1	111	-	-	-	-	-	-	=	-	-	-
	65	*3.)	I M.P.	T,H,R,1	-	-	-		-			-		-	1 1 1			-		-	-	-	-	=	-	=	-
	09	3X.*	3 Y, S,	EVALUATED, USING, THREE	(1)		1 1 1 1	1 1 1		1111	1 1 1 1		1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1	-	1 1 1 1	1111			-	-		1	-	1 1 1		-
		DR.T.	E, D, 1	I'S'I	OR. DELITAX, 1,0,11,0,0,1,0,10,0,1,0,0,1,0,0,0,0,0,	-	1 1 1		-	1 1 1		-	E		-	1 1 1	-	-		-	-		-				
	50	E, S,	P,U,T,	T,ED,	D 0		TE	-					AS,UBOE							-	=			=]	-]
	20	,URV	COM	A,L,U,A	A'N	-	ME'N	-	-	111		-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
		H,E, C	I,S,	E,V,	0,5,0,		I,N,C,R,E,M,E,N,T,E	-	-			-	5, T,O,	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-		-	-	-
	45	R, T,	R.E.A.	I,S,	0	-	O,F, I,				-		A,S,U,B,5							=		-	-	XE	-	-	
	40	I'N'D'E	(E, A	T,H,E, A,R,E,A, I,S,	1000	-		111	-	-		-			-	-	-	-	=	-	-		-	11-	-	-	-
		E,A, ,L	T, T,	H,E, ↓	0	11111	V,A,L,U,E		-	-		-	N,S M,I	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	N,D,	-	-	-
	35	A.R.	D, ,1,	., T.	A,X,	-		-	-	FE.	FE.	FE.	T,R,A,	-	-	-	-		=	-	-	111	-	I CA.	(E)	-	=
	30	T,H,E,	AN,	GRATION.	E,L,T,		T,RANS,MI,T,			OFFE	O.F.FE	O.F.FE	AS UBN-9, CONST-9, TRANSMIT					-		10	=			RADCND, XSUBN, , RADILCAND	N.E.S,1,3,	-	
		LES.	0 N	RAT	R, D	-	T,RA	-	-	S.W.3,	SW, 2,	S.W.1	LS T	(E)	(3)	-	-	-	-	J.B.N.+	<u></u>	N,+,1E	TE	B.N.s.	VE'S'-	-	JAKE
MARKS	25	PROGRAM COMPUTES	I,WEF	N,T,EG	S, FC	-		38	N.I.T.E.	SET.	SET.	S.E.T.	, C,O,	PSIX, ASUBNE	PSIX, XSUBNE	-	9E	-	(E)	TR , AS UBN-19, ASUBN+1E	PISI X, AS UBNE	BNR, ASINE, ASIUBN+10	U'N'I	X,S,U,		0.9E	ODDI NT. ONEONE
OPERANDS & REMARKS	20	CO	BE	L I	LUE.	(E)	AX,	- Z	N, U	51111	5,00	5,00	6-N	A S	XS		L., 9		1, 9,3	6-N	AAS	E . A	N,D,	'N'D'	N.D.	A.T.W	N.T.
OPER/		RAM	I,E,S	R, I, C, A	V, V	7,3,2	ELT.T	A.R. E.A., Z, 3 E	X,S,U,B,W,U,N,I,T	W.3.	W.2	W.1.	A,S,U,B	XIS	X I'S'	8.4 E, , ,	* + 2 *	9,30	P,S,I,X,,9,3E	A,S,U,E	X' I'S'c	N' I'S'Y	RAD'C	3,A,D,C	R,A,D,C,N,D,, Z,N,I	N.I.N.E., T.WO9E	I'd'd'C
OPERATION	15 16	P.R.OG	X I	U,MEF	RENT	DORG 1,7,3,2E	F, L	T,F, , A	T,F, , >	T,D,M S,W,3,, 5,, 1, S,E,T	T,D,M S,W,2,,5,,,,S,E,T,	T,D,M S,W,1,,,5,,,,S,E,T	TR, /	F. I	-	-	BNF, *,+,2,*,L,,9,9	S.F.	T,F, I	RIL	A, I I	N.R.	T.F. , RADCND, UNI	S	T,R,	T.F. I	T.F.
OPE	11 12		FE	I, N,I	FEL		L' T'	T	T.	T,1	T	T,1	T	T.F.	E, M,	SF	B	S	T	T	A	, B	T,	S	T	T	T
LABEL		T,HIS		*, FOR, NUMBRICAL, INTE	*, DIFFERENT, VALUES, F	1111	o.e.o S.T.A.R.T. T.F. , D.E.L.T.A.X., X., 7	-	-	-	-	-	1 1 1	-	1,4,0 ASI N.E.	-	1 1 1	-		-	-	1 1 1		-	-		
32.0	60	*	*	_	$\overline{}$	0	S	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	o A	0	0	0	0,1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LINE	10	0110	01210	01310	01410	01510	9 0	01710	01810	01610	1,010	01111	1,2,0	1,3,0	4	1.5.0	0 9 1	1,7,0	1,8,0	01611	2,0,0	2,10	2,2,0	2,3,0	2,4,0	2,5,0	2,6,0

IBM

1620 Symbolic Programming System Coding Sheet

Form No. X26-1227

Program Numerical Integration (Sample Program)

Page No. [0,2] of

2

Programmed by ______ Date__

LABEL	ODEDATION	The second secon									
-	11 12 15 16	OPERANDS & REMARKS	30	35	40	4 5	20	55	90	65	70
1 1	-	+,2,*,L,E,	-				11111		11111	11111	
0,2,0 R,O,O,T,	A, , ,	- 8	-	-		1	-	-	-		
-	S	RADCND, +,7,,ODD,I,N,TE	N,TE	-					1		
-	B,N,N,	ROOTE I	-	-		-		-	-	-	
	A, , ,	$R_{A,D,C,N,D,+,7,,O,D,D,I,N,T,\overline{E}}$	N,TE	-			-		11111		
	T,R,	R,A,D,C,N,D,-,6,,,R,A,D,C,N,D,-,5E	N,D,-,5E	-				-		1	
1111	S	ODD1,N,T,-,8,,N,I,N,E,E	(I	-		-	-	-	-		
0.000	T,F,	T,F, N,I,N,E,,,N,I,N,E,-,1 E	1111			-					
1 1 1 1	B,N,F,	R,O,O,T,+,1,*,L,,,T,WO,+,	16			-			1111		
1 1 1 1		S,Q,R,T,,N,I,N,E,S,E,	-	1111			11111				
1 2 6 1 3	SF	R,A,D,C,N,D,+,2(E),	-			-	-				
	S	S,Q,R,T,,R,A,D,C,N,D,+,7((F)				1		1111	11111	
1 1 1	M	SQRT, PSIXE	-	1111			1		1111		
	S _F	8,5层				-					
	T,F,	TEMP1, 94E	-	-		-	-		1 1 1 1		-
S,W,1,	B, .	SW.2E				-			1111		
	M,	X,S,U,B,N,,X,S,U,B,NE		1111							
11111	SF	8,7臣		1111	11111			1111			11111
1111	T.F.	T,E,MP,2,,9,6,E				-				1111	
11111	M'M	T.E.M. R. 2, 1, 1, 0, E		11111					1 1 1 1	-	
	SF	8,9年111111111111111111111111111111111111			11111		1111	1111	11111	1111	
	T,F,	RADGND, 9,5E	-			-	-				
11111	T,F, ,	P,S,I,X,,C,O,N,S,T,+,5,0)	6								
	S	P,S,IX,,TEMP,1E	-			-					
	T,D,M	T,D,M SW,1,,,4E	-								
	р	日 1 * T T D D D D									

IBM

1620 Symbolic Programming System

Form No. X26-1227

Program Numerical Integration (Sample Program)

Programmed by

Coding Sheet

Date

S Page No. 0,3 of

LINE	LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS & REMARKS
in c	6 W S	H 12 15 16	16 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75
0,2,0			A.R.F.A., T.F.M.D.1 = 4 F.0 + F.N.F.
01310	*	IALI	F.S.U.B.O.D.D.E.
01410	-	T.F.	AXE
01510		T,F,M	(a)
01910	11111	T,D,M	
01710	1 1 1 1	T.F.	
01810		T,F,	TEMP3,, DELTAXE
01610	11111	A,	
01011	11111	В,	A.S.I., N.E.—, 3, *, I.E.
01111	NACCOONIN	A, , ,	1億
1.2.0	11111	Α,	XS.U.BN, T.E.MP.3E
1,3,0	- 1 1 1 1	C, .	N.I.N.ES., XS.U.B.N.E.
1,4,0		-	
1,5,0	1,5,0 MULT,T,		
1,6,0		SF	8.88
1,7,0		A,	A.R.E.A., 9,5 E.
1.8.0	1,8,0 S,W,3, , ,	B, ,	-
01611	I'I'N' I' *	I'T'Y'I	
2,0,0		T, F,M	T.F.M MULT:+111,12,11,0,E
2,1,0		T, F,	
2,2,0		T, F,	P3®
2,3,0		T,DM,	
2,4,0		В, .	-
2,5,0		M	A.R.E.A., D.E.L.T.AX.
2,6,0		S.F.	8.88

1620 Symbolic Programming System Coding Sheet

Program Numerical Integration (Sample Program)

Page No. 10,4 of 5

0							9	- 2	
Progra	Programmed by			Date					
LINE	LABEL	OPERATION	OPERANDS & REMARKS	4	4	· ·	C	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
0	-	F.	EM P1. 9.7E	00	64	000	0	2	-
0,2,0		-	T.E.M.P.1, T.H.R.E.E.S.						1 1
01310		-	QUIT.P.UT.+,2,6,,D.E.L.T.A.X,5 @	5.图	11 11 11 11 11	11 101 111			
01410		-		46					
01510		T.D.	OU,T,PUT,+,3,0,,D,E,L,T,A,X,-,3,	36	111111				
01910		T.D.	QUIT.RUT.+.4.6., 18.3.						
01710		T.D.	OUT.PUT, +, 5, 0, 1, 8, 4 (2)						
01810		T.D.							
01610		T.D.	OU,T,P,UT,+,5,4,,,8,6,						_
0'0'1	1111	T.D.	OUT.P.UT, +, 5, 6, , , 8, 7, 🖲 , , ,		111111				
0 1 1		-	QUIT.P.U.T.+.5.8., 8.8.		1 1 1 1 1 1	11111111	111111	1111111	1.0
1,2,0		W,A,T,Y							
1,3,0		A.M.	S,T,A,R,T,+,1,1,1,7,1,1,0, ,1,				111111		
1,4,0		CM	S,T,A,R,T,+,1,1,,X,+,2,1,,			1111111			
1.5.0		B,N,E,	STARTE				111111		
1.6.0		Н, ,	(a)						
1,7,0	1,7,0 * A.R.E.A.	D.E.F	DEF IN IT LONSE			1111111			
1.8.0	I. B. O D.E. L.T.A.X D.S.	DS.	7®				1111111		
0'6'1	X 0,6,1		7,11,00,0,0,0,0)		111111	111111			-
2,0,0			75.00,000000000000000000000000000000		111111	1111111	111111		
21/10	11111	D,C,	7,,,2,5,0,0,0 (3)		111111	1111111	111111		-
2,2,0	2, 2, 0 A.R.E.A.	D,S,	86						-
2,3,0	21310 Z 1 1 1	DIC	1,1,,00						
21410	ZINIO XSIUBIN	D,S,	70		111111	111111111			-
2,5,0	2,5,0 U.N. I.T.	D.C.	7,,11,00,0,0,0,0,0		111111	1111111	1111111	11111111	-
0 9 2	AS, U.B.N.	D, S, B,	2,6,0 ASJUBIN DISB 1,0,16,0						-

1620 Symbolic Programming System Coding Sheet

Program Numerical Integration (Sample Program

Page No. 0.5 of 5

Form No. X26-1227

Date

Programmed by

10																										
7	-	172	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	- 14	-	-	-	-		-	-	+	-	-	-	-	-	+	
		15	-	1										-				1	7	1	_				1	
	_	-	-	-	12	-			-		-	- 4	1		-	_	-	4	-	-	-	-	-	1	4	
0	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	+	
-	1	82	~	1	-	-		-	-		-	-	-	-	-						-				1	
	1		_]									1	-						1	-					
	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	1=	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	+	
10		-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-	-		- 7		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	7	
-	1	-	_														1			1	1	1				
	-		-	-	-	-		-	-		-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	+	
	+		-	-	1	-	-	1	-		-	-	(=	-		-	-	-	-	-	-					
9	1	-	-		1						-			1		1]		1	1	[]	4				
	4	-	-	-	2.2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1-	-	-	-	: :	-	-		-	-	-	-	
			-		-	-			-	1	-		-	1	1	1				1						
	1	=	_		_				_	_		_	_	-	4		-	-	-	4	-	-	_	_	-	
50	4	-	-	-	-	3	-	- 3	-	-	132	-	-	-	+	9	-	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
	1	-	-			-				1		Ī	-		1	1	1		_	1	-			-		
]		_	_	9	-		-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	4	-	_	-	-	-	-	
20	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0-	-	2.7	-	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	Œ	-	
10	j												1				1		1		1			0		ĵ.
- 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0'0	-	
	1		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	.]	-				1				0		
40	1	-		1	-						_	1		7	7	1	-	4	7	4			_	0	4	
	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	12-	-	-	-	-	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0 .	-	
- 1	1		-	-	-	Ī		-			-	Ī												0		
	1			_		1				_	_	1		-	-	- 3	-	4	7	-	_	_	-	AREA = 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 @ E	-	
4	+	1,0	-	8 3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	7	-	-	-	-	-	-	+	+	-	-	14	E		
	1					1			1		-	1	1	1					1					M		
	-		-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	Ą	-	
20	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	7	-	-		1-	-		7		
"]	1											1	1		4	0	.]		4		_	_		0 (
	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	T	' -l	-	-	-	-	-	-	0,0	-	
				-	-							j		9		0	j		j	1		1	j			
30	1	1	-	I			E]]	I	-		1	0	4	0,0	7	7	7					I, A, X = 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 1		
- 1	-	-	3	(E)	-	2,E	2	-	-	-	-	-	+	0	+	0,0	\exists	-	-	-	-	-	-	×	-	
		Œ	(E)	40	(E)	6	0		1		(E)		1	0	1	0	1		1	1	-			Ą	1	
	-	6,0	3,9	80	1	3	5,2	-	4	-	00	-	-	610	-	0,0	4	4	-	4	-	-	(F)		-	
RKS 25	-	7.6	6	8	3	1.2	6	-	-	1.7	6	-		0	4	0	+	(E)	+	-	-	-	30	ध्य	-	
E M A		7.	6	5	9	5	7	-		1	6	1	_	0	1	0	=	6		=	Ī	_	3,3	Q	7	
-5	-	3,3	3,4	4.9	20	1,4	7,0	-	-	-	6 6	+	-	0'0	3-	0'0	-	9,9	-	-	-	=	3.3	R	(E)	1
OPERANDS & REMARKS		4	9	1,0,, -,4,4,9,5,8,8,8,4	1,0,,8,7,8,7,6,3,1,1	1,0,,,-,2,1,4,5,1,2,3,6,2,E	1,1,,1,5,7,0,7,9,5,2,0,7,@底	,1,2医,	1	7色	1,5,, 9,9,9,9,9,9,9,@便			0	1.4图	0		6		1	1		3	3,1,, EQR, DEL	H	
PER	7	Ī	-	Ī	œ	Ī	٦	E	C	-	6	1	-	2	(E)	7	4	6'6	(E)	(F3)	(E3	-	3 3	H.	A, B	
0	(G)	0	0	01,	0	0	1.	1.2	1,00	(E	5	(E	(E)	2	46	4.	(ii	3,	OF	1,0E	1,10	7 E		1,	T	
15 I6	10	T	7	1		1	1	-		7.0	Н			Н		1	9	9	Н	Н		7	7	က		
OPERATION 12 15	-	0,2,0 CON,S,T, D,C, 1,0,, -,4,3,3,7,7,6,9 E	D.C. 1,0,,1,9,3,4,9,9,3,9	-		D'C'	D,C,			-	-			1,4,0 T.W.O9, D.C. 112,,2,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0	-	1,6,0 ON, E.ON, ED.C. 1,4,1,1,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0	1,7,0 S Q.R.T. , D.S. , 6E . , , , , ,	D,C, , 6,, 9,9,9,9,9,	1,0 T.E.M.P.1, D.S., 1,0 E.	-	-	=	21310 T.H.R.E.ESD.C. 71, 313,3,3,3,3,3,8	ŭ	DENDSTARTE	
ERA	D.S.	Ü	Ü	D'C'	D'C'	Ü	Ü	D,S,	S	Ø	Ö	Ś	D,S,	Ö	S	Ü	Š	r)	ß	DS	S	ß	Ö	Ą	回	
= OP	A	Q	Ω	Ω	Ð	Д	Д		A	8	8	А	A	A	8	0	А	A	А		A	А	SB	F	A	-
- 1	+	H		-	-			7	D.S.I.X. D.S.	1,0,0 RADCNDDS	LILO ZNINE SDIC	LZ O T.W.O D.S.		7	I.S.ODDIINTDIS	Z	1	1,8,0 N,I,N,E,S	T			z, z, o T.E.M.P,3, D,S,	田	2,4,0 OUT.P.U.T.DA.C.	1	
LABEL	1	ß				1	1		×	Q	Z	~	国	9	H	0	H	H	LP	LP	D	I.P	E	P	=	
LA LA	-	NO	-	-	-	-	- 5	-	SI	7	I	N.C	Z	N	7	H	H	N.	3	3	20	3	HR	LIC	-	
9	-	CK		-	_ 1		-	0,8,0 L, , ,	Д	R	Z	H	1,3,0 N,I N,E,	H	O	O	S	Z	T,	2,0,0 T.E.M.P.2,	A,(H	T,I	0,1		
LINE	0110	0	01310	01410	01210	0 6 10	01710	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	2,0	3.0	07	2,5,0	
	-	(7)	10	4	IN.	9	7	00	O	0	-	N	(Cal	4	eD.	Ψ	-	00	O.	0	2		17.5	1	41	

LISTING OF SAMPLE PROGRAM

START	DORG TF	1732 1732		02782	02789
670.00.0000	TF	1744			02818
	TF	1756			
	TDM	1768	15	02488	00005
	TDM	1780			00005
	TDM	1792	15	02164	
	TR	1804	31	02837	02898
	TF	1816	15	02968	02846
ASINE	M	1828	23	02968	02829
	SF	1840	32	00084	00000
	BNF	1852	44	01876	00099
	SF	1864			00000
	TF	1876			00093
	TR	1888		02837	02847
	A	1900		02968	02846
	BNR	1912	45	01828	02847
	TF	1924			02836
	S	1936	22	02975	02829
	TR	1948	31	02975	02987
	TF TF	1960	26	03002	03014
	В	1972 1984	26 49	03028	03042
ROOT	A	1996	21	03020	02996
	S	2008	22	02920	03028
	BNN	2020	46	01996	00130
	A	2032	21	02982	03028
	TR	2044	31	02969	02970
	S	2056	22	03020	03002
	TF	2068	26	03002	03001
	BNF	2080	44	02008	02997
	TF	2092	26	03048	03054
	SF	2104	32	02977	00000
	S	2116	22	03048	02982
	M	2128	23	03048	02968
	SF	2140	32	00085	00000
	TF	2152	26	03064	00094
SW1	В	2164	49	02296	00000
	M	2176	23	02829	02829
	SF	2188	32	00087	00000
	TF	2200	26	03074	00096
	MM	2212	13	03074	00003
	SF	2224	32	00089	00000
	TF TF	2236	26	02975	00095
	5	2248	26	02968	02975
	TDM	2260	15	02164	03064
	В	2284	49	01948	00000
SW2	В	2296	49	02404	00000
	A	2308	~ "	02811	03600
	TF	2320		02829	02782
	TFM	2332		02463	00004
	TDM	2344		02296	00004
	TF	2356		03085	02822
	TF	2368		03092	02782
	A	2380	21	03092	03092
	В	2392	49	01792	00000
ODDVN	A	2404	21	03085	03064
	A	2416	21	02829	03092
	C	2428	24	03054	02829
	BNH	2440	47	01792	01100
MULT	MM	2452	13	03085	00000
	SF	2464	32	00088	00000
	A	2476	21	02811	00095

```
2488 49 02560 00000
SW3
                2500 16 02463 00002
        TFM
                2512 26 03085 02822
        TF
        TF
                2524 26 02829 03092
                2536 15 02488 00005
        TDM
                2548 49 01792 00000
        В
                2560 23 02811 02782
        M
                2572 32 00088 00000
         SF
                2584 26 03064 00097
         TF
                2596 23 03064 03099
        M
                2608 25 03127 02787
        TD
                2620 25 03129 02788
        TD
         TD
                2632 25 03131 02789
                2644 25 03147 00083
        TD
                2656 25 03151 00084
        TD
                2668 25 03153 00085
2680 25 03155 00086
         TD
        TD
        TD
                2692 25 03157 00087
                2704 25 03159 00088
        TD
                2716 39 03101 00100
        WATY
        AM
                2728 11 01743 00007
                2740 14 01743 02810
        CM
                2752 47 01732 01200
        BNE
                2764 48 00000 00000
        H
DELTAX
        DS
                2782
                          7
                2789
                          7
                               0100000
        DC
                               0050000
                          7
                2796
        DC
                               0025000
        DC
                2803
                          7
AREA
                          8
                2811
        DS
                              00000000000
        DC
                2822
                         11
XSUBN
        DS
                2829
                          7
                               1000000
                          7
UNIT
        DC
                2836
                2846
                         10
                               6
ASUBN
        DSB
                2897
                          1
        DS
                               0004337769
CONST
        DC
                2907
                         10
                               0019349939
                2917
                         10
        DC
                               0044958884
        DC
                2927
                         10
        DC
                               0087876311
                2937
                         10
                               0214512362
                2947
                         10
        DC
                2958
                         11
                               1570795207#
        DC
        DS
                  12
PSIX
                2968
                         10
        DS
                          7
                2975
RADCND
        DS
                               00000009999999
ZNINES
        DC
                2990
                         15
        DS
                2996
                          6
TWO
NINE
        DS
                3002
                          6
                3014
                         12
                               200000090000
TWO9
        DC
ODDINT
        DS
                3028
                         14
                               100000000000001
ONEONE
                3042
                         14
        DC
                          6
        DS
                3048
SQRT
                               999999
NINES
        DC
                3054
                          6
TEMP1
                         10
        DS
                3064
TEMP2
        DS
                3074
                         10
ACCUM
        DS
                 3085
                         11
                3092
                          7
TEMP3
        DS
THREES
                3099
                         7
                               3333333
        DC
                         31X2 FOR DELTAX 0.000, AREA 0.00000+
                3101
        DAC
OUTPUT
        DEND
                1732
```

FUNCTIONAL LIST OF 1620 SYMBOLIC PROGRAMMING MNEMONIC OPERATION CODES

AREA DEFINITION

Operation Code	Description
DS & DAS	Define Symbol
DC & DAC	Define Constant
DSA	Define Symbolic Address
DSB	Define Symbolic Block

INSTRUCTIONS

	OPERATIO	ON CODE	
TYPE	Mnemonic	Machine	OPERATION
Arithmetic	A	21	Add
	AM	11	Add (Immediate)
	S	22	Subtract
	SM	12	Subtract (Immediate)
	С	24	Compare
	CM	14	Compare (Immediate)
	M	23	Multiply
	MM	13	Multiply (Immediate)
Internal Data	TD	25	Transmit Digit
Transmission	TDM	15	Transmit Digit (Immediate)
	TF	26	Transmit Field
	TFM	16	Transmit Field (Immediate)
	TR	31	Transmit Record
Branch	В	49	Branch
	BNF	44	Branch No Flag
	BNR	45	Branch No Record Mark
	BD	43	Branch on Digit
	*BI	46	Branch Indicator
	*BNI	47	Branch No Indicator
	BT	27	Branch and Transmit
	BTM	17	Branch and Transmit (Immediate)
	BB	42	Branch Back
Input Output	*RN	36	Read Numerically
	*WN	38	Write Numerically
	*DN	35	Dump Numerically
	*RA	37	Read Alphamerically
	*WA	39	Write Alphamerically
Miscellaneous	*K	34	Control
	SF	32	Set Flag
	CF	33	Clear Flag
	H	48	Halt
	NOP	50-99	No Operation

^{*} Mnemonic codes which require modifiers in the Q operand.

PROCESSOR OPERATION CODES

Operation Code	Description
DORG	Define Origin
DEND	Define End

UNIQUE MNEMONICS TO REPLACE MNEMONICS REQUIRING MODIFIERS

The following lists of unique mnemonics may be used in place of the mnemonics requiring a modifier. Modifiers for these mnemonics are supplied by the processor.

Unique	OPERATION	UNIT REFERENCED
BH	Branch High	High-positive indicator
BP		High-positive indicator
BE		Equal-zero indicator
BZ		Equal-zero indicator
BV	701000000000000000000000000000000000000	Overflow indicator
BA	24 CONTRACTOR STATE OF THE STAT	ANY latch
BNL		High-positive/equal-zero indicator
BNN		High-positive/equal-zero indicator
BC1	Branch Console Switch 1 ON	Program Switch 1
BC2	Branch Console Switch 2 ON	Program Switch 2
BC3	Branch Console Switch 3 ON	Program Switch 3
BC4	Branch Console Switch 4 ON	Program Switch 4
BNH	Branch Not High	High-positive indicator
BNP	Branch Not Positive	High-positive indicator
BNE	Branch Not Equal	Equal-zero indicator
BNZ	Branch Not Zero	Equal-zero indicator
BNV	Branch No Overflow	Overflow indicator
BNA	Branch Not Any	ANY latch
BL	Branch Low	High-positive/equal-zero indicator
BN	Branch Negative	High-positive/equal-zero indicator
BNC1	Branch Console Switch 1 OFF	Program Switch 1
BNC2	Branch Console Switch 2 OFF	Program Switch 2
BNC3	Branch Console Switch 3 OFF	Program Switch 3
BNC4	Branch Console Switch 4 OFF	Program Switch 4
RNTY	Read Numerically	Typewriter
RNPT	Read Numerically	Paper Tape
		Typewriter
60000000000000000000000000000000000000		Paper Tape
		Console
		Typewriter
		Paper Tape
Fried 12 or 1		Console
P. (7.17.17.77.77.77.77.77.77.77.77.77.77.77		Typewriter
		Paper Tape
		Typewriter
	그 것들이 가는 것이 되었다면 하는데 하는데 하는데 되었다면 하는데	Paper Tape
		Console
		Typewriter
SPTY	Space Space	Typewriter Typewriter
	BH BP BE BZ BV BA BNIL BNIN BC1 BC2 BC3 BC4 BNH BNP BNE BNZ BNV BNA BL BN BNC1 BNC2 BNC3 BNC4 RNTY RNPT WNTY WNPT WNC DNTY DNC RATY RAPT WATY WAPT WAC TBTY RCTY	BH Branch High BP Branch Positive BE Branch Equal BZ Branch Zero BV Branch Overflow BA Branch Not Low BNN Branch Not Negative BC1 Branch Console Switch 1 ON BC2 Branch Console Switch 2 ON BC3 Branch Console Switch 3 ON BC4 Branch Not High BNP Branch Not Positive BNE Branch Not Equal BNZ Branch Not Zero BNV Branch No Overflow BNA Branch Not Any BL Branch Not Any BL Branch Console Switch 1 OFF BNC1 Branch Console Switch 1 OFF BNC2 Branch Console Switch 2 OFF BNC3 Branch Console Switch 1 OFF BNC4 Branch Console Switch 2 OFF BNC5 Branch Console Switch 1 OFF BNC6 Branch Console Switch 1 OFF BNC7 Branch Console Switch 1 OFF BNC8 Branch Console Switch 2 OFF BNC9 Branch Console Switch 2 OFF BNC9 Branch Console Switch 3 OFF BNC9 Branch Console Switch 4 OFF RNTY Read Numerically WNTY Write Numerically DNTY Dump Numerically DNTY Dump Numerically DNTY Dump Numerically DNTY Dump Numerically WNTY Write Alphamerically WATY Write Alphamerically

IBM 1620 PUBLICATIONS

The following IBM 1620 Systems literature has been published as of the date of this bulletin.

Form Number

Title

BULLETINS

J28-4200-1

IBM 1620 FORTRAN: Preliminary Specifications

J28-4202*

Additional Macro-Instructions for the IBM 1620 Symbolic

Programming System

J28-4203

IBM 1620 Subroutines: Preliminary Specifications

The following IBM 1620 Machine literature has been published as of the date of this bulletin.

REFERENCE MANUAL

A22-4500

1620 Data Processing System

BULLETIN

G22-4501

General Information

*This publication has been incorporated in its entirety into the present revision of the 1620 Symbolic Programming System bulletin, form J28-4201-1.

IBM

84.17

International Business Machines Corporation
Data Processing Division, 112 East Post Road, White Plains, N.Y.

Printed in U.S.A. J26-4201-1 5/60
THE COMPUTER MUSEUM HISTORY CENTER